
History 
1. Lake Bonneville (14,500 BC) 

 Maximum Shoreline height of 5,090 feet or to just below the fee collection station (Curry 1990 as cited in Link et al.)  

 Native fish may have included Bonneville cutthroat trout, suckers, dace, sculpin, whitefish, chub  
 

2. Pre-1847 prior to pioneer settlements 
 Native American Tribes (Utes) 

 Refuge for wildlife, with water draining into the Jordan River 
 

3. 1847-1906 (Settlement, High Councils and County Courts) 
  (Carter 1941, Keller 2001, Sigler & Sigler 1987) 
 Mills were built along the stream. (15 to 20 total) Grist (1848); Timber Mills (1848 Highland Drive, 1850 mouth of Porter Fork, 

1852 Elbow Fork); Shingle Mill and Fuel Wood Mills 



 
 
 
 
 



 



 Power Generation (5 sites)   
 
An upper plant was torn down in 1970.  The lower plant at the mouth of the canyon was shut down in 1949. (Keller, CL. 2001. 
The Lady in the Ore Bucket. University of Utah Press, Salt Lake City, Utah) 

 
From the report, “Utah Power & Light Co., History of, Origin and Development, Prepared in connection with [a] Federal Power 
Commission Request, Order Dated May 11, 1937” 
 
Reference: Part II, page 16-17 
 
Mill Creek Power Company 
The Mill Creek Power Company, incorporated January 24, 1906, build a hydro-electric plant in Mill Creek Canyon (east of Salt Lake 
City) in 1907 and constructed a 16,000 volt transmission line to serve a brick company. In 1910 the Company obtained a contract to 
furnish power for the U.S. Smelter at Midvale. To fulfill the contract the Company started construction on a second plant but before 
work was completed the Company was purchased to form the Knight Power Company. At the time of its purchase the Mill Creek 
Power Company operated one plant rated at 1400 kva and served one major customer. 
 
Knight Power Company 
Having acquired the above power projects the Knight people decided to consolidate all electrical properties under one head and 
separate its mining and electrical activities. The Knight Power Company was formed for this purpose on June 2, 1910. At the time of 
acquisition by the Knight Consolidated Power Company the Knight Power Company operated plants at Santaquin, Snake Creek, 
Murdock, Upper and Lower Mill Creek. This company served the Knight mining interests in the Tintic and Park City districts, a brick 
yard near Salt Lake City and a smelter at Midvale. 

 
Appendix, page 178-179: 
 
Mill Creek Power Company 
In 1906 Francis M Lyman, Jr., surveyor and engineer of Salt Lake City, had surveyed a large part of the mountainous area lying to 
the east of the city. He visioned the possibilities of power in this area and along the Duchesne River the year before and had 
even made application for water power and the State Engineer’s Office and planned three large plants on the Duchesne. The 
plants, however, did not materialize. 
 



 
 
 
Preliminary Surveys 
In the latter part of the 1905 he interest John P. Cahoon of Murray in the development of Mill Creek waters just east of town. At 
this time Mr. Cahoon and Melvin M. Miller were partners in the mercantile business and Mr. Cahoon was active in the 
management of the Salt Lake Pressed Brick Company. 
 
Mr. Lyman and Mr. Cahoon made an inspection trip to the canyon in January 1906, which fully convinced Mr. Cahoon. He 
purchased a power site near the one which Mr. Lyman owned and announced that a company would be formed to build two 
plants and that all the power from one of the plants had already been contracted for by institutions in and around Salt Lake City. 
Company Organized 
 
The Mill Creek Power company was formed January 24, 1906 with Mr. Miller as President; D.B. Brinton, Vice-President; Mr. 
Lyman, Secretary; John A. Bagley, Attorney and Mr. Cahoon. 
 
Upper Mill Creek Plant Built 
The upper Mill Creek plant was constructed in 1907 about six miles above the mount of the canyon. A rubble masonry dam was 
built on solid rock foundation and a flow line of 22-inch wood stave pipe was laid in trench on the hill side for 9135 feet. The 
penstock consisted of 865 feed of 22, 20 and 18-inch riveted steel pipe. The generating station consisted of on Doble Company 
unit direct connected to a 2300-volt G.E. generator. 
Power was transmitted at 16,000 volts for 12 miles to a substation at the Brick Company’s yard. It developed that the brick 
company used most of the plant’s output. 
 
Second Plant Started 
In the spring of 1901 the Company obtained a five-year contract to supply power to the U.S. Smelter at Midvale. To fulfill the 
contract the Company started work on another plant. 
Company Purchased by Knight 
Before it was completed, however, the Knight Investment Company had made a survey of the Mill Creek properties and the two 
concerns combined their power holdings June 2, 1910, to form the Knight Power Company. 
 



March 30, 1912, the Mill Creek Power Company conveyed its holdings to the Knight Consolidated 
Power Company. 
 
[Note: Utah Power & Light Company was incorporated Sept. 6, 1912, with Knight Consolidated as a direct predecessor.] 
 

 



Pelton Wheel once used to generate power. 
 

 
 

 Timber was Harvested 

 Toll and Public Roads Constructed (1848) 

 Grazing 

 Recreation 

 Fish Stocking in the Salt lake Valley started in 1873. 
  



4. 1906 after the establishment of the Wasatch National 
Forest 
 Recreation Residents built between 1915-1950 and are still in operation. 

From the Salt Lake Telegram May 25, 1915 it reads: 
 

 

 



 Picnic Areas Developed 

 Power Plants Built (see above) 

 Mount Olympus Wilderness (1984) 

 Forest Management Plans (1986, 2003) 

 Stream Habitat Improvement (1990-1995) 

 County Fee Collections (early 1990’s) 

 Culvert Surveys (2007) 
 

5. Current Features 
 Twelve Picnic Areas 

 Two Restaurants 

 Two Recreation Resident Tracks (69 lots) 

 Multiple Trails and Trailheads 

 Multiple Boy Scout Camps and Training Facilities 

 Heavy Dog Use 

 Winter Ski Trails 

 Non-motorized Bike Use 
 
 
 

 


